
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

April 19, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by Jim Cutter, Pastor of Church on the Rock
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Honor of Earth Day - April 22
ii. Proclamation in Honor of Arbor Day - April 29
iii. Proclamation in Recognition of Parliamentary Law Month - April

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

April 19, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by Jim Cutter, Pastor of Church on the Rock
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Honor of Earth Day - April 22
ii. Proclamation in Honor of Arbor Day - April 29
iii. Proclamation in Recognition of Parliamentary Law Month - April

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the April 5, 2016 Council Meeting
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Appointment: Lisbeth Cort to the Arts Commission
d. Employment Agreement for Assistant to the Mayor - Deanna Emery

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the April 5, 2016 Council Meeting
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Appointment: Lisbeth Cort to the Arts Commission
d. Employment Agreement for Assistant to the Mayor - Deanna Emery

1



5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Resolution 16-14:  Alteration to Island Place Division 2 Final Plat

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Resolution 16-14:  Alteration to Island Place Division 2 Final Plat

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2



3



4



5



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the April 5, 2016 
Council Meeting

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the April 5, 2016 
Council Meeting

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUTPREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 4/05/2016 Minutes

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 4/05/2016 Minutes

6

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460589122_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2016 
Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

April 5, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Rick Almberg  Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Beth Munns Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Tara Hizon Chief of Police Ed Green 
 Economic Development Director Barbara Spohn 
 City Administrator Admin. Assistant Nikki Tesch 
 City Clerk Anna Thompson 
  

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church provided the invocation, and then Mayor Severns led 
the led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 

   seconded by Councilmember Campbell, and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Employee Service Recognitions 
 
 Employee Recognition for Lisa Edlin, Police Department Receptionist – 10 years 
 
Dr. Merriman and Chief of Police Ed Green thanked Lisa for her services to the Finance Department and Po-
lice Department.  
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:07 p.m.  
 
 

7



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
Citizens Speaking 
 Aaron Taggert 
 
The comment period was closed at 6:09 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on  
b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c. Ordinance No. 1764: Amending Bond Ordinance No. 1756 
d. Ordinance No. 1759: Amending OHMC 2.310.050 regarding Professional Service Contracts 
e. Ordinance No. 1762: Repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 regarding ADA Review Committee and OHMC 

Ch. 2.35 regarding Program of Monetary Awards for City Employees 
f. Resolution 16-12: Amending Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) of the Master Fee Schedule 
g. Resolution 16-13:  Supporting continued state funding of the MRSC with no conditions 
h. Reappointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board 
i. Appointment: Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Committee 
j. Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member 
k. Appointment: Julie Fakkema to the Park Bards as the Alternate Member 
l. Appointment: Alyssa Merriman to the Planning Commission 
m. Appointment:  Appoint Hal Hovey and Alyssa Merriman to the Planning Commission 
n. City-Wide Auctioneer Agreement 2016 
o. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services – Island County   
p. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services – School District 
q. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services – North Whidbey Fire and Rescue 
r. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services – Town of Coupeville  
s. Bid Award – Jail and Evidence Security Camera 
t. North Whidbey Sportsmen’s Association Range Agreement – Oak Harbor Police Department 
u. F-Dock Breakwater Repair – Professional Services Agreement with Moffat & Nichol for Engineering 

Services  
v. Confirmation of Finance Director Patricia Soule  
 

Councilmember Munns asked to pull Consent Agenda Item 4.g.  
 
Motion:   Councilmember Munns moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 4.a through 4.f, and  

    4.h through 4.v as presented. Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, and the  
    motion passed by unanimous vote.  

 
Consent Agenda Item 4.g   
Councilmember Munns spoke in support of the legislature funding MRSC.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to accept Consent Agenda Item 4.g as part of the  

   consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember Servatius. The motion passed  
   unanimously. 

 
 
 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 

8



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
Dr. Merriman announced that the new Finance Director Patricia Soule will begin work soon.  The Workshop will 
be held on Wednesday, April 27th, 2016. 
 
City Administrator Dr. Merriman explained that there is a conflict with the June 21st City Council Meeting and 
the AWC Annual Conference and invited the Council to reschedule the Council Meeting.  
 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   
 
Councilmembers asked follow-up questions regarding the Clean Water Facility Project. 
  
 2016 Marathon Update by the Race Director 
  
Elks Member Rodger Beaumont provided updates on the 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon.  
 
Questions and Comments from the Council.  
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Bob Severns spoke on the most recent meeting with the Economic Development Council on March 16th. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Campbell had no comments.  
 
Councilmember Munns spoke on the AWC Annual Conference that will be held in Everett this year.  Ms. 
Munns asked about the Oak Tree issue recently mentioned in the Newspaper. Mayor Severns explained that 
the Oak Tree in question exists on private property and is being handled in the civil context.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao no comments.  
 
Councilmember Almberg commented on the recent events at the Board of Island Transit.  Former U.S. Navy 
Captain Nortier was appointed as the Executive Board Director by unanimous vote.    
 
Councilmember Hizon announced the next Youth Coalition event on May 17th, which conflicts with the Council 
Meeting.  Ms. Hizon then announced that she received an Advanced Municipal Leadership award from AWC.  
Councilmember Hizon requested that the Parliamentary Law Proclamation be added to the next Council meet-
ing.   
 
Councilmember Servatius made the following motion: 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved that staff make a presentation regarding the possible  

   implementation of the Portland Loo for the City of Oak Harbor within the next 90 days.  
   Seconded by Councilmember Hizon.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
Councilmember Servatius also asked for cost estimates for the Portland Loo project. 
  
There is a need for more public restrooms in Oak Harbor City Limits.  

9



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
Councilmember Wasinger and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao also expressed an interests in the Portland Loo re-
strooms.   
 
Councilmember Wasinger had no comments. 
 

CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 

Clean Water Facility – General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment # 7  
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Clean Water Facility contractors Trevor Thies and Bryan Shirley with Hoffman Construction and Kris Beaty of 
KBA Construction Management were present. 
  
Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 7:12 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:12   p.m. 
 
Question from City Council. 
 
Clean Water Facility – General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment # 7  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 –  

   2009 Exhibit A (GMP #7) in the amount of $9,355,969 plus Sales Tax ($813,969) with  
   Hoffman Construction for Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 and Miscellaneous  
   Changes.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously  
   approved.  

 
ADJOURN 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
           Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

10



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 166073 through 166228 in the amount of $786,144.10.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37661-37789.

- EFT check numbers 797-799.

- Payroll check numbers 98795-98809.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 166073 through 166228 in the amount of $786,144.10.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37661-37789.

- EFT check numbers 797-799.

- Payroll check numbers 98795-98809.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

11



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)

12

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460493944_at.pdf


04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
1

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166073 4/8/2016 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 040816 PREMIUMS  40.26
Total :  40.26

 166074 4/8/2016 0007872  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & ASSOCIATES, TRUST ACCOUNT040816 ESCROW FOR WELLS FARGO PARKING LOT  2,912.37
Total :  2,912.37

 166075 4/8/2016 0003023  PACIFIC PARTY CANOPIES, INC 16424-1 RENTAL EQUIPMENT  1,744.88
Total :  1,744.88

 166076 4/8/2016 0005912  GREENLAYER 8179 MARATHON SHIRTS  3,444.32
Total :  3,444.32

 166077 4/11/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 033116 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,601.86
Total :  4,601.86

 166078 4/11/2016 0007872  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & ASSOCIATES, TRUST ACCOUNT040516 WELLS FARGO LAND PURCHASE  257,137.74
Total :  257,137.74

 166079 4/12/2016 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 040516 SALES/USE TAX  52,806.33
Total :  52,806.33

 166080 4/12/2016 0000001  3M SS03292 PRISMATIC SHEETING  267.40
 541.33FILM/TRANSFER TAPESS03294
 244.58FILM/TRANSFER TAPESS03295

Total :  1,053.31

 166081 4/12/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 25037 MAR 2016 MONTHLY CLEANING  491.92
 3,066.58MAR 2016 JANITORIAL SERVICES25108

Total :  3,558.50

 166082 4/12/2016 0000005  A-1 TOWING 58276 TOWING SERVICES  193.49
Total :  193.49

 166083 4/12/2016 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20160106 APR 2016 MONTHLY LICENSE  199.00
Total :  199.00

 166084 4/12/2016 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 25506 KEY  2.00

1Page:
13



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
2

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166084 4/12/2016 (Continued)0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY
 12.00KEYS25523

Total :  14.00

 166085 4/12/2016 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 3017 SHIRTS/SWEATSHIRTS/JACKETS  2,074.00
Total :  2,074.00

 166086 4/12/2016 0007464  ALLIED FIRE & SECURITY RCB1197866 2ND QTR 2016 MONITORING AGREEMENT  90.00
Total :  90.00

 166087 4/12/2016 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 MAR 2016 WATER PURCHASED  157,541.00
 1,252.86MAR 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 10,923.75MAR 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02
Total :  169,717.61

 166088 4/12/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36642 APR 2016 WEB HOSTING  15.95
Total :  15.95

 166089 4/12/2016 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 040116 PUBLIC DEFENSE  600.00
Total :  600.00

 166090 4/12/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0891114-IN FUEL  2,928.71
Total :  2,928.71

 166091 4/12/2016 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 42309 REGISTRATION CANCELLATION FEE  25.00
Total :  25.00

 166092 4/12/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1600677-IN TESTING  122.00
Total :  122.00

 166093 4/12/2016 0008191  AYZENBERG YACHTS 2420 MOORAGE REFUND  466.90
Total :  466.90

 166094 4/12/2016 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 176004 ACTUATOR  195.66
Total :  195.66

 166095 4/12/2016 0000084  BEBEE, STEVE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  288.00

2Page:
14



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
3

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  288.00 166095 4/12/2016 0000084 0000084  BEBEE, STEVE

 166096 4/12/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2679 NAME TAGS  10.50
Total :  10.50

 166097 4/12/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82095735 STETHOSCOPES  161.39
Total :  161.39

 166098 4/12/2016 0008186  CALLAHAN, JOHN 3963 MOORAGE REFUND  233.62
Total :  233.62

 166099 4/12/2016 0008187  CALLAN, DAN 432 MOORAGE REFUND  55.00
Total :  55.00

 166100 4/12/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 869162 SUPPLIES  1,402.91
 1,089.24SUPPLIES890415

Total :  2,492.15

 166101 4/12/2016 0001235  CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES 29748400 FLAGS  528.39
Total :  528.39

 166102 4/12/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 9919 SERVICE LINE MOD  2,310.18
Total :  2,310.18

 166103 4/12/2016 0002000  CLARK'S NATIVE TREES & SHRUBS 15971 GARRY OAK  342.09
Total :  342.09

 166104 4/12/2016 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 52684 MUNICIPAL CODE WEB HOSTING  648.93
Total :  648.93

 166105 4/12/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300271046803 INTERNET  241.37
Total :  241.37

 166106 4/12/2016 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1459324 CONCRETE/POZZOLITH/EXPANSION JOINT  501.87
 251.35BUILDING SAND1460938

Total :  753.22

 166107 4/12/2016 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 38948 OIL  101.18

3Page:
15



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
4

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166107 4/12/2016 (Continued)0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY
 53.25OIL38949

Total :  154.43

 166108 4/12/2016 0008189  CRATER, GEORGE 3132 MOORAGE REFUND  79.11
Total :  79.11

 166109 4/12/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-99361 ENGINE MAINTENANCE  8,024.21
Total :  8,024.21

 166110 4/12/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 16-1697 NAME TAG EMERY  8.15
Total :  8.15

 166111 4/12/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-51 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500608-52
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-51
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-52
 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-35

 120.00PORTABLES1-530333-3
 60.00PORTABLES1-533127-3
 60.00PORTABLES1-533144-4
 60.00PORTABLES1-534324
 60.00PORTABLES1-534325
 54.36IDLER PULLEY FLAT1-535527

Total :  714.36

 166112 4/12/2016 0004978  DOUBLETREE SUITES SOUTHCENTER 40170 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/MERRILL  588.00
Total :  588.00

 166113 4/12/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 1102 LAUNDRY SERVICES  10.87
Total :  10.87

 166114 4/12/2016 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 41963406 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  747.86
 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963411
 741.61MAINTENANCE420103

Total :  2,237.33

 166115 4/12/2016 0008195  ELEMENT SOLUTIONS 16089 PROF SVC/SCENIC HEIGHTS OUTFALL  2,420.00

4Page:
16



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
5

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,420.00 166115 4/12/2016 0008195 0008195  ELEMENT SOLUTIONS

 166116 4/12/2016 0008192  EMERGENCY SERVICES MARKETING 10983 SUBSCRIPTION FEE  850.00
Total :  850.00

 166117 4/12/2016 0000251  ENTERPRISE SERVICES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF16142943 STORAGE CABINET/MISC FURNITURE  115.00
Total :  115.00

 166118 4/12/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK22645 HEX DIES/NUTS GALV  49.07
 47.81CLAMPSWAOAK22664
 55.03SPP TAP/ADJUSTABLE WRENCHWAOAK22665
 12.60CLAMPSWAOAK22677
 26.75USS F/W Z/FHNZ/HCSWAOAK22701
 59.76HWH SDS/NUT GALVWAOAK22753
 8.77FEND WASHWAOAK22808

Total :  259.79

 166119 4/12/2016 0008084  FIRE INVESTIGATORS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF20388-12098 MEMBERSHIP/MERRILL  65.00
Total :  65.00

 166120 4/12/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,388.17
 72.91CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 248.25CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 47.72CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 76.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 65.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651
 65.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789
 71.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 407.53CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 71.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902
 92.72CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,805.64

 166121 4/12/2016 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 123847 LUMBER  7.73

5Page:
17



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
6

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  7.73 166121 4/12/2016 0000326 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY

 166122 4/12/2016 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 107076 EXTENSION  0.04
 87.61KIT108145

Total :  87.65

 166123 4/12/2016 0000330  GARDNER, TERI EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  325.55
Total :  325.55

 166124 4/12/2016 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2015916 HID PROX II CARDS  1,190.27
Total :  1,190.27

 166125 4/12/2016 0003064  GC SYSTEMS, INC 32950 SEAL KIT  45.01
Total :  45.01

 166126 4/12/2016 0006977  GEOLINE, INC 334480 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE EXTENSION  864.17
 675.03SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE334841

Total :  1,539.20

 166127 4/12/2016 0007997  GOLDSTREET DESIGN AGENCY, INC 00002693 CULINARY POWERPOINT  4,891.50
Total :  4,891.50

 166128 4/12/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9065697014 DUCT TAPE  110.35
Total :  110.35

 166129 4/12/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 041116 REIMBURSEMENT  8,333.34
Total :  8,333.34

 166130 4/12/2016 0005912  GREENLAYER 8129 MARATHON SHIRTS  110.00
Total :  110.00

 166131 4/12/2016 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 646755 ALARM MONITORING  57.00
 483.00ANNUAL FIRE ALARM TESTING649904
 138.00ANNUAL FIRE ALARM TESTING649907

Total :  678.00

 166132 4/12/2016 0005723  HANE, FRED 4762 MOORAGE REFUND  98.42

6Page:
18



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
7

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  98.42 166132 4/12/2016 0005723 0005723  HANE, FRED

 166133 4/12/2016 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 46826/2 SAMPLE STATION  706.12
Total :  706.12

 166134 4/12/2016 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F254376 GATE WASHER/O-RING  413.17
Total :  413.17

 166135 4/12/2016 0000380  HEALTH, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 041116 CERTIFICATION EXAM APPLICATION  87.00
Total :  87.00

 166136 4/12/2016 0006629  HIZON, TARA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  53.50
Total :  53.50

 166137 4/12/2016 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 15040807 MONITOR  207.45
Total :  207.45

 166138 4/12/2016 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 032816 DUE/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67
Total :  166.67

 166139 4/12/2016 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 612328-1 RECEPTACLE WEDGE/COUPLINGS/NIPPLES/ELBOW 555.19
Total :  555.19

 166140 4/12/2016 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 041116 MEMBERSHIP/LEE  25.00
Total :  25.00

 166141 4/12/2016 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 1567 HEPATITIS IMMUNIZATIONS  105.00
Total :  105.00

 166142 4/12/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 033116 MAR 2016 TIPPING FEES  81,621.38
 36.50DISPOSAL CHARGES1222239

Total :  81,657.88

 166143 4/12/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 033116 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  229.88
Total :  229.88

 166144 4/12/2016 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 016 MAR 2016 PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

7Page:
19



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
8

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166145 4/12/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 040116 MAR 2016 RECYCLING  5,215.65
 103.43ANIMAL SHELTER4306710

Total :  5,319.08

 166146 4/12/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114507237315 INMATE MEDS  47.49
 15.05INMATE MEDS114507237668

Total :  62.54

 166147 4/12/2016 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 240796 WATER/MARINA  14.30
 28.60WATER/MARINA241033

Total :  42.90

 166148 4/12/2016 0008094  ISS WONDERWARE 406106 WIN-911 PRO-PV BUNDLED TAPI  3,651.77
Total :  3,651.77

 166149 4/12/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5103671MB ASPHALT  261.70
Total :  261.70

 166150 4/12/2016 0008194  LEE, BRIAN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  95.00
Total :  95.00

 166151 4/12/2016 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 1404645-20160331 MAR 2016 MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35
Total :  54.35

 166152 4/12/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2134216-01 ROYAL BLUE SS POLY  96.13
 186.77SHIRTS2135961-00
 83.94PANTS2136004-00
 93.37PANTS2136106-00

Total :  460.21

 166153 4/12/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 111243 YARD WASTE  312.45
 231.95YARD WASTE111263
 10.00YARD WASTE111300

 270.80YARD WASTE111309
 15.00YARD WASTE111310
 20.00YARD WASTE111317

 342.55YARD WASTE111350
 198.00YARD WASTE111512

8Page:
20



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
9

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166153 4/12/2016 (Continued)0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY
 101.75YARD WASTE111576
 153.90YARD WASTE111625
 342.20YARD WASTE111724
 204.30YARD WASTE111915
 141.30YARD WASTE111974
 184.35YARD WASTE112055
 230.55YARD WASTE112138
 174.55YARD WASTE112325
 190.30YARD WASTE112385
 199.05YARD WASTE112452
 269.05YARD WASTE112500
 10.00YARD WASTE112567

 278.15YARD WASTE112584
 20.00YARD WASTE112585
 50.00YARD WASTE112762

 135.00YARD WASTE112777
 171.40YARD WASTE112852
 241.40YARD WASTE112938
 309.30YARD WASTE113009

Total :  4,807.30

 166154 4/12/2016 0007797  MARATHON PRINTING, INC 22393 BIBS  636.04
Total :  636.04

 166155 4/12/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 050932 GROCERIES  480.42
 364.74GROCERIES321397

 1.34PRESCRIPTION541741
Total :  846.50

 166156 4/12/2016 0000362  MARSH-MCBIRNEY - HACH COMPANY 9859081 FLUORIDE/CHLORINE  233.79
Total :  233.79

 166157 4/12/2016 0005025  MASCOTT EQUIPMENT 362339 BUSHING/NOZZLE  118.75
Total :  118.75

 166158 4/12/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P44116 FEB 2016 POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  444.90

9Page:
21



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
10

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166158 4/12/2016 (Continued)0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC
 429.01MAR 2016 POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICEP44602

 3,029.27MAR 2016 POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP44603
Total :  3,903.18

 166159 4/12/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 44602 MAR 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  244.58
 898.41MAR 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS44603

Total :  1,142.99

 166160 4/12/2016 0008110  MINUTEMAN PRESS 63044 BLANK BOARDS  197.28
Total :  197.28

 166161 4/12/2016 0008185  MORROW, VIRGIL OR ROSEMARY 36-604010-11 UTILITY DEPOSIT REFUND  298.80
Total :  298.80

 166162 4/12/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES IN1014930 O-RINGS/AIR COMP  32.61
Total :  32.61

 166163 4/12/2016 0000589  MUNICIPAL RESEARCH SERVICES 33690 MRSC ROSTERS  240.00
Total :  240.00

 166164 4/12/2016 0005005  MUNNS, BETH TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  210.42
Total :  210.42

 166165 4/12/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0258405 OMM C9 JSC  90.89
Total :  90.89

 166166 4/12/2016 0008193  NORTHERN INN 2281 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/PADRTA  307.16
Total :  307.16

 166167 4/12/2016 0007075  NORTHWEST ASSESSMENT SERVICE 1555 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EVALUATIONS  1,125.00
Total :  1,125.00

 166168 4/12/2016 0003889  NORTHWEST FIRE INVESTIGATORS 040816 REGISTRATION/BUXTON  425.00
Total :  425.00

 166169 4/12/2016 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE 4009 ADVERTISING  253.33

10Page:
22



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
11

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  253.33 166169 4/12/2016 0005767 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE

 166170 4/12/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 268974 FUSE  2.71
 0.98FASTENERS269209

 100.69FILTER/CLEANER/OIL269281
 8.35FASTENERS269283
 5.91FASTENERS/ENV269353

 36.16FASTENERS269442
 7.11FASTENERS269464

 11.77PLUMBING SUPPLIES/FASTENERS269519
 7.60CAP269552

 13.89ANCHOR/EYEBOLT/WASHERS269612
 244.53LEAF BLOWER269622

Total :  439.70

 166171 4/12/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-268258 SEAT COVERS  250.78
 106.64DRUM/ROTOR001-268521
 16.35FILTERS001-268525
 20.48FILTERS001-268526
 23.94OIL SEAL001-268566
 9.51FILTERS001-268611

 54.84WATER PUMP001-268681
 141.30SIDE BARS001-268706

 1.74MINI LAMP001-268709
 5.72COOLANT HOSE001-268748

 141.30SIDE BARS001-268767
 141.30SIDE BARS001-268768
 141.30SIDE BARS001-268769
 22.93DIGITAL CALIPER001-268794
 22.93DIGITAL CALIPER001-268795

 248.93ALTERNATOR001-268818
 52.74CRANKSHAFT SEN001-268875
 6.58WIPER BLADES001-268921
 8.41FILTERS001-268922

 119.24PRIMARY WIRE001-269000
 60.17TORCH KIT001-269274
 77.46GUAGE001-269440

11Page:
23



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
12

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166171 4/12/2016 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER
 69.79PRIMARY WIRE001-269441
 45.00FILTERS001-269457
 4.55FILTERS001-269458

 68.58MST CYL001-269464
 58.82CONDUCTOR001-269516
 61.12BLADERUNNER001-269527
 7.21BEAM/CPSL001-269726
 7.21BEAM/CPSL001-269736

 134.42BALL BEARING001-269785
Total :  2,131.29

 166172 4/12/2016 0000676  OAK HARBOR POLICE DEPARTMENT 033116 PETTY CASH  54.53
Total :  54.53

 166173 4/12/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150138 APR 2016 COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  11,092.00
Total :  11,092.00

 166174 4/12/2016 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 113 LEVAC/BAILEY  115.00
 75.00SOULE419149
 80.00SOULE419257
 38.00CUMMINS420243
 38.00NEWHOUSE420455

Total :  346.00

 166175 4/12/2016 0007027  ORSWELL EVENTS, LLC 2015092 PERFORMANCE FEE  18,500.00
Total :  18,500.00

 166176 4/12/2016 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO JS70027 DOOR REPAIR  1,089.41
Total :  1,089.41

 166177 4/12/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0097404 TIRES  84.09
 78.12TIRES0097405

 1,646.64TIRES0097616
 838.68TIRES0097619
 999.15TIRES0097741

Total :  3,646.68

12Page:
24



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
13

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166178 4/12/2016 0000182  PACWEST MACHINERY, LLC 00305857 PISTON/O-RING/PLUG  203.23
Total :  203.23

 166179 4/12/2016 0005783  PARTSMASTER 23003005 SOLDER PASTEBOND  99.01
Total :  99.01

 166180 4/12/2016 0008188  PILYANSKY, SERGIY 6159 MOORAGE REFUND  106.64
Total :  106.64

 166181 4/12/2016 0008109  PIONEER AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES 16083 BRAKE MAINTENANCE  102.72
Total :  102.72

 166182 4/12/2016 0000710  PLATT ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC Z020396 CLAMPS/CONDUIT  27.13
Total :  27.13

 166183 4/12/2016 0007500  POLICE CHAPLAINS, INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE46110 MEMBERSHIP/LAWLER  125.00
Total :  125.00

 166184 4/12/2016 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 257262 SHIPPING  14.45
Total :  14.45

 166185 4/12/2016 0005069  PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 270435 POWER MAGS  401.71
Total :  401.71

 166186 4/12/2016 0003544  PUBLIC RECORDS OFFICERS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF1570 WAPRO 2016 SPRING TRAINING/THOMPSON  225.00
Total :  225.00

 166187 4/12/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200003131170 ELECTRICITY/WELL #7  13.68
 13.68ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13,832.08ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421
Total :  13,859.44

 166188 4/12/2016 0000753  RADIOSHACK 026403 PK4 10A 5X20 FA  11.38
Total :  11.38

 166189 4/12/2016 0006762  RAINIER ENVIRONMENTAL 2160 TESTING  700.00
Total :  700.00

13Page:
25



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
14

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166190 4/12/2016 0000965  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 010716 LEASEHOLD TAX  28,399.68
Total :  28,399.68

 166191 4/12/2016 0005827  ROBINSON, JACK TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  28.60
Total :  28.60

 166192 4/12/2016 0000781  SAFEWAY 721344 GROCERIES  62.55
Total :  62.55

 166193 4/12/2016 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 16-1262 LEADER HOSE/GUIDE  386.32
Total :  386.32

 166194 4/12/2016 0000817  SHELLEY, TIM TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  22.10
Total :  22.10

 166195 4/12/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9410025116 SHREDDING  76.36
 64.26SHREDDING9410025150

Total :  140.62

 166196 4/12/2016 0007588  SIGLER, LUKE 2398 MOORAGE REFUND  313.08
Total :  313.08

 166197 4/12/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-319846 CONCEALED LED  425.79
 12.17GROMME14-320135

 217.86CONCEALED LED14-320467
Total :  655.82

 166198 4/12/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 447399 ROUNDUP  217.38
 204.32ROUNDUP/HERBICIDE/SPREADER447501
-43.48ROUNDUP/HERBICIDE447605
 55.37SOIL447877

Total :  433.59

 166199 4/12/2016 0004821  SME SOLUTIONS, LLC 212381 FILTERS  69.76
Total :  69.76

 166200 4/12/2016 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0084781-IN GASKET  23.11

14Page:
26



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
15

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  23.11 166200 4/12/2016 0000843 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC

 166201 4/12/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7666132 FEB 2016/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  272.06
 125.85CITY APPLICATIONSWCW689247
 88.47CITY NOTICESWCW689262

 113.39CITY NOTICESWCW690518
 173.19CITY APPLICATIONSWCW690605
 127.09CITY APPLICATIONSWCW690608

Total :  900.05

 166202 4/12/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 032116 LIFE/POCFF  683.13
Total :  683.13

 166203 4/12/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3296169685 LABELS/COPY PAPER  72.37
 23.76DVD-R SPINDLE3296169688

 206.52TIME CLOCK/DOCUMENT STAMP3296169689
 64.56PRINT CALC3296169690
-68.40CREDIT3296733487
-19.76CREDIT3296733489
-39.23CREDIT3296733493

 5.21BATTERY3297378303
 95.95TONER/MARKERS/PAPER3297378304

Total :  340.98

 166204 4/12/2016 0000872  SUPERIOR SYSTEMS, INC S20166366 TANK REPAIR  5,656.43
Total :  5,656.43

 166205 4/12/2016 0007568  THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP 3002494892 2ND QTR 2016/ELEVATOR SERVICE  314.86
Total :  314.86

 166206 4/12/2016 0008190  TIBERT, PAUL 7045 MOORAGE REFUND  264.23
Total :  264.23

 166207 4/12/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 040116 COURT/BC FEES  9,647.30
Total :  9,647.30

 166208 4/12/2016 0002363  TRI AIR TESTING, INC R90214 AIR TESTING  440.40

15Page:
27



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
16

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  440.40 166208 4/12/2016 0002363 0002363  TRI AIR TESTING, INC

 166209 4/12/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W136 SHIPPING  18.70
Total :  18.70

 166210 4/12/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 031816 LONG TERM CARE  338.12
Total :  338.12

 166211 4/12/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  727.57
Total :  727.57

 166212 4/12/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  537.94
Total :  537.94

 166213 4/12/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  496.47
Total :  496.47

 166214 4/12/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  26.00
Total :  26.00

 166215 4/12/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  18.73
Total :  18.73

 166216 4/12/2016 0006019  VISTAMATION, INC 8968582A ARCHIVE SHELVING  1,210.77
Total :  1,210.77

 166217 4/12/2016 0000953  WASH MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOC 040116 MEMBERSHIP/THOMPSON  75.00
Total :  75.00

 166218 4/12/2016 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL 2 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.50
Total :  227.50

 166219 4/12/2016 0002032  WASHINGTON WASTEWATER PERSONNL 041116 REGISTRATION/ROBINSON/ROBBINS  300.00
Total :  300.00

 166220 4/12/2016 0001055  WATERWORX DIVE SERVICE 032116 UNDERWATER SERVICES  466.32
Total :  466.32

 166221 4/12/2016 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT DIST, INC 798409 BELTS  575.29

16Page:
28



04/12/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
17

 1:07:23PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  575.29 166221 4/12/2016 0007094 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT DIST, INC

 166222 4/12/2016 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1292 MAR 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  8,500.00
Total :  8,500.00

 166223 4/12/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 279356 LIFT SUPPORT  50.68
 29.89OXYGEN279417
 29.81HOSEND/AIR BRAKE HOSE279792
 91.66OIL279969
 45.83OIL279990

Total :  247.87

 166224 4/12/2016 0007823  WHIDBEY ISLAND RACE WEEK 040116 ADVERTISING  2,207.93
 792.07ADVERTISING041116

Total :  3,000.00

 166225 4/12/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48402 BUSINESS CARDS/SPOHN  78.10
Total :  78.10

 166226 4/12/2016 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3973052 CURRENT NET CHARGES  42.07
 65.88ALARM MONITORING3975909

Total :  107.95

 166227 4/12/2016 0001037  WORK OUTFITTERS 50684 BOOTS/BAZA  175.18
Total :  175.18

 166228 4/12/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 084091931 COPIER RENTAL  279.57
Total :  279.57

Bank total :  786,144.10 156 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 786,144.10Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 156

17Page:
29



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Lisbeth Cort to the 
Arts Commission

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Lisbeth Cort's appointment to the Arts Commission, position 2, to serve a 4 year term 
beginning 4/19/2016 and ending 4/19/2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
KC Pohtilla served on the Arts Commission for three consecutive terms beginning February 21, 2006 
and ending March 1, 2016 in position 2.  Mrs. Cort has expressed interest in serving on the Arts 
Commission.  Mayor Severns appointed Lisbeth Cort to serve in position 2 on the Arts Commission.  If
approved, her term will begin on April 19, 2016 and end on April 19, 2020 for the full 4-year term.

OHMC 2.29.040 allows that a majority of the members either reside or work within the City limits. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Lisbeth Cort to the 
Arts Commission

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Lisbeth Cort's appointment to the Arts Commission, position 2, to serve a 4 year term 
beginning 4/19/2016 and ending 4/19/2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
KC Pohtilla served on the Arts Commission for three consecutive terms beginning February 21, 2006 
and ending March 1, 2016 in position 2.  Mrs. Cort has expressed interest in serving on the Arts 
Commission.  Mayor Severns appointed Lisbeth Cort to serve in position 2 on the Arts Commission.  If 
approved, her term will begin on April 19, 2016 and end on April 19, 2020 for the full 4-year term.

OHMC 2.29.040 allows that a majority of the members either reside or work within the City limits. OHMC 2.29.040 allows that a majority of the members either reside or work within the City limits. 
 Currently, a majority of the current members work or reside within the City of Oak Harbor.  Mrs. Cort
resides outside City limits and because a majority of existing Arts Commission members work or live in 
the City of Oak Harbor, she meets the membership requirements. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.29

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

OHMC 2.29.040 allows that a majority of the members either reside or work within the City limits. 
 Currently, a majority of the current members work or reside within the City of Oak Harbor.  Mrs. Cort 
resides outside City limits and because a majority of existing Arts Commission members work or live in 
the City of Oak Harbor, she meets the membership requirements. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.29

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

See Biography attached

30



Boards & Commissions - Biography Form          3/2016 

Boards and Commissions 
Biography Form 

Recommended Board Appointment for: Arts Commission 

Name: Lisbeth Cort Date: 4/15/16 

Address: PO Box 1081 

City, State, Zip:  Coupeville, WA 98239 

Phone Number: Email Address: 

Mailing Address: (if different from above) 

Resident of Oak Harbor City 
Limits? If yes, how long? 

no 

Occupation and Place of Employment: 
(if retired, reference previous occupation(s)) 
Currently a professional artist.  30-year career managing and staffing nonprofit 
organizations across the country, including:  Deputy Director for Advancement 
at Grantmakers in the Arts; Director of Outreach and Development at the 
Whidbey Camano Land Trust, Executive Director of the Washington Trust for 
Historic Preservation and the Utah Heritage Foundation; Assistant Director of 
the Western Regional Office of the National Trust for Historic Preservation; and 
Director of Community Services at Indiana Landmarks.  Taught “Organization 
Development for Preservation Nonprofits” course for 13 years in the Graduate 
degree program at Goucher College.  For two years, taught “Preservation 
Planning” and “History of Historic Preservation” in Ball State University College 
of Architecture and Planning’s graduate program in historic preservation.  For 
three years just before retiring in 2015:  Owner and Certified Interior Decorator 
at Whidbey Island Style®. 

Local Group or Civic Affiliations:  
Soroptimist of Oak Harbor (current) Vice-President 2015-16; Director 2016-17 
Trust Board of Ebey’s Landing National Historical Reserve (past) Town of 
Coupeville appointee 

Special Interests:  
Art, travel, gardening 

Education and Other General Comments:  
M.S. in historic preservation with planning minor, Ball State University 
B.A. in history with minors in French and English, Tennessee Tech University 

31



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Employment Agreement for 
Assistant to the Mayor - Deanna 
Emery

FROM: Bob Severns, Mayor

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize Mayor to sign Emloyment Agreement for Assistant to the Mayor with Deanna Emery.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appointed Deanna Emery as the new Assistant to the Mayor on February 2, 2016.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Employment Agreement for 
Assistant to the Mayor - Deanna 
Emery

FROM: Bob Severns, Mayor

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize Mayor to sign Emloyment Agreement for Assistant to the Mayor with Deanna Emery.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appointed Deanna Emery as the new Assistant to the Mayor on February 2, 2016.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) 2.60.010 and 2.34.055

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Employment Contract
2. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Support

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) 2.60.010 and 2.34.055

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Employment Contract
2. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Support

32

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460486685_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460666078_at.pdf


 
  Oak Harbor Assistant to the Mayor 
  Employment Agreement 
  Page 1 of 5 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 

Assistant to the Mayor 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, effective February 2, 2016, by and between the City of Oak Harbor, hereinafter referred 
to as “City”, and Deanna Emery, hereinafter referred to as “Assistant to the Mayor” 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to OHMC 2.34.055 the Assistant to the Mayor is employed by the City and shall be 
offered an employment contract, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions of employment, 
and to set working conditions for the position of Assistant to the Mayor, and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to OHMC 2.34.055, the Mayor has offered an employment contract to the Assistant to the 
Mayor and the City Council has approved said employment contract with Deanna Emery as Assistant to the 
Mayor for the City of Oak Harbor, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Assistant to the Mayor agrees to serve in that capacity subject to the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Employment Contract, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the 
City and Assistant to the Mayor agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment.  The City hereby employs the Assistant to the Mayor to serve in this position for the City 

of Oak Harbor.  The duties of said position shall be to perform all duties assigned to the position of 
Assistant to the Mayor as provided in the job description, the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, and 
Washington State law, together with such other and further duties and special projects as may be 
assigned to the Assistant by the City’s Mayor.  Pursuant to OHMC 2.60.010 and 2.34.055 the Assistant 
shall serve at the pleasure and at the discretion of the City’s Mayor. 

 
2. Duration of Employment.  This Employment Agreement shall become effective on February 2, 2016, 

and shall continue indefinitely thereafter unless sooner terminated by the parties as provided in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 below. 

 
3. “At Will” – Termination by the City.   The Assistant to the Mayor shall at all times during employment 

be considered an “At Will” employee, subject to termination by the City’s Mayor at any time with or 
without cause.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed other than an “At Will” employment 
relationship between the City and the Assistant to the Mayor and the Assistant to the Mayor expressly 
acknowledges that no contrary representations have been made by the City. 
 

4. Resignation – Termination by the Assistant to the Mayor.  The Assistant to the Mayor reserves the right 
to resign from employment at any time with or without cause.  The Assistant to the Mayor agrees to give 
the City not less than two (2) weeks’ notice prior to the effective date of any such resignation. 

 
5. Compensation:  The Assistant to the Mayor shall be compensated for services rendered during the term 

of this Agreement as follows: 

33



 
  Oak Harbor Assistant to the Mayor 
  Employment Agreement 
  Page 2 of 5 

 
a. Base Salary.  The Assistant to the Mayor shall receive a monthly salary of $5531.00.  The rate of 

pay may be adjusted annually consistent with the salary range and steps established for this 
position.  

 
b. In the event that a salary and wage study is conducted, the Assistant to the Mayor position shall 

be included.  
 

c. Benefits.  The Assistant to the Mayor shall be entitled to a sick leave accrual of one day each per 
month, vacation leave accrual as set forth in the City Personnel Polices, and eleven paid holidays 
which includes one floating holiday. 

 
 The Assistant to the Mayor shall also receive all other benefits provided by the City of Oak Harbor to 

regular employees as they exist now or as they are modified in the future. The following describes the 
benefits as they exist on the effective date of this Agreement: 

 
 Medical insurance, premium paid 100% and 75% premium paid for spouse and 

dependent children. 
 Dental insurance, premium paid 100% and 75% premium paid for spouse and children. 
 Standard Insurance life insurance policy of  $25,000 paid for employee only 
 Enrollment in Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). 

 
The Assistant to the Mayor shall also be entitled to elect other voluntary benefit options as they exist 
now or as they are modified in the future.  The following describes the voluntary benefits as they exist 
on the effective date of this Agreement: 
 

 Self-paid individual and/or family supplemental insurance coverage for Short-term 
Disability, Cancer Care, and Critical Illness 

 Pre-tax deductions for some unreimbursed expenses and/or Dependent Day Care 
 Additional self-paid Voluntary Group Life Insurance 
 Self-paid enrollment in a choice of two Deferred Compensation Plans 

 
d. Timing of Monthly Payments – Deductions.  All monthly payments of salary and benefits shall 

be made at the same time and on the same date as the City’s regular payroll.  All such monthly 
payments shall be subject to all required state and federal deductions, including income tax, 
social security, and any other deduction required and authorized by law.   The City agrees to pay 
all employer contributions to FICA, worker’s compensation, and similar programs as required by 
law. 

 
6. Work Schedule.  The Assistant to the Mayor is a confidential, exempt employee for purposes of the 

Federal Fair Labor standards Act and as such shall not work a fixed forty hour per week schedule.  The 
Assistant to the Mayor’s work shall be conducted at Oak Harbor City Hall during regular business hours 
of the City, Monday through Friday, provided, that the Assistant to the Mayor shall receive time off for 
holidays according to the holiday schedule customarily observed by the City.  The Assistant to the 
Mayor may be asked to attend all meetings of the Oak Harbor City Council and shall attend such other 
staff meetings as requested by the Mayor.  

34



 
  Oak Harbor Assistant to the Mayor 
  Employment Agreement 
  Page 3 of 5 

 
7. Severance Package.   
 
 a. Severance for At Will Termination.  In the event the Assistant to the Mayor’s employment with 

the City is terminated for any reason other than those delineated in subparagraph (b) below, the City will 
provide the Assistant to the Mayor severance payment for a period of three (3) months after the effective 
date of termination.  The monthly amount shall be paid in accord with the same schedule as the regular 
City payroll, and shall be subject to the same mandatory deductions as the Assistant to the Mayor’s 
salary was prior to termination. 

 
i. Reference.  In the event of termination of the Assistant to the Mayor’s employment by 

the City, the Assistant to the Mayor shall be entitled to an employment reference from the 
City, the language of which shall be agreed upon by the parties, provided, that in the 
event the parties cannot agree on the form of the reference, the City will provide only the 
dates of the Assistant to the Mayor’s employment, the last position held, the last salary 
received, the fact that the Assistant to the Mayor is no longer employed by the City. 

 
  ii. Unemployment Benefits.  The City will not oppose any unemployment benefit   

 claims  made by the Assistant to the Mayor. 
 

b. Termination by Resignation or for Cause.  The severance package provided for in subparagraph 
(a) above shall not be available to the Assistant to the Mayor if the termination of the Assistant to 
the Mayor’s employment with the City is due to: 

 
i. Resignation.  The Assistant to the Mayor’s voluntary resignation from employment.  For 

purposes of this paragraph, “voluntary resignation” means a resignation of employment 
resulting from the free choice of the Assistant to the Mayor and not the result of a 
suggestion to resign in lieu of termination made by formal action of the Mayor or City 
Council. 

 
ii. Misconduct.  Criminal conduct, commission of any crime, abuse of public office, or other 

gross misconduct, including, but not limited to, fraud, deceit, embezzlement, theft of 
funds or property, assault, or sexual, racial, or other harassment; or  

 
iii. Job Performance.  Insubordination, incompetence, inadequacy, or inefficiency of the 

Assistant to the Mayor in the performance of official duties.   
 

c. Construction.  The severance package provided in subparagraph (a) above shall not be construed 
as an extension of the Assistant to the Mayor’s employment beyond the termination date.  The 
Assistant to the Mayor shall not, during the period between the termination date and the end of 
the severance payments, accrue any additional sick leave, vacation, leave, or other benefit 
accorded active City employees. 

 
8. The City agrees to cover the Assistant to the Mayor on the City’s liability insurance policies to the same 

extent as any regular employee of the City is covered for acts, errors, or omissions within the scope of 
employment.  All such liability insurance coverage shall be provided at the City’s sole cost and expense. 

35



 
  Oak Harbor Assistant to the Mayor 
  Employment Agreement 
  Page 4 of 5 

 
9. The City of Oak Harbor agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Assistant to the Mayor from any and 

all costs, risk or liability associated with or arising out of acts or failures to act which are performed 
within the scope of employment as the Assistant to the Mayor including the reasonable cost of legal 
defense by counsel appointed by the City or its insurance carrier, as applicable. This promise to 
indemnify shall exclude only criminal acts of the Assistant to the Mayor and acts or failure to act which 
would constitute an intentional tort or intentional wrongdoing knowingly committed by the Assistant to 
the Mayor without the express direction of the Mayor or City Administrator of the City of Oak Harbor.  
This promise to hold harmless and indemnify shall survive beyond the employment of the Assistant to 
the Mayor with the City of Oak Harbor in order that the Assistant to the Mayor shall be held harmless, 
indemnified and defended in the future for all acts taken as the Assistant to the Mayor subject to the 
limitations contained herein. 

 
10. Severability.  If any paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Agreement shall be held by a  court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, said invalidity or unenforceability  shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of any other paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase,  and to that end the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement shall be severable. 
 
11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the 

parties as to the terms and conditions of the Assistant to the Mayor’s employment by the City and no 
other agreements or understandings, oral or otherwise, exist or shall be deemed binding upon the parties.  
The Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. 

 
 
Dated this __________________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
        For the City of Oak Harbor:      
 
        ____________________________________  
       Robert Severns, Mayor      
 
 
               
        Deanna Emery 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 

36



 
  Oak Harbor Assistant to the Mayor 
  Employment Agreement 
  Page 5 of 5 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
        
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



Chapter 2.60 
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE MAYOR 

Sections: 

2.60.010    Appointment. 

2.60.010 Appointment.  

The mayor may at his/her discretion appoint an executive assistant/secretary to do confidential work for the 

mayor’s office and to assist the mayor with other duties of his/her office. This position shall be included in the 

salary and benefit plan for the city but the executive assistant/secretary shall serve for an indefinite term and at 

the discretion of the mayor. (Ord. 1026 § 1, 1995). 

2.34.055 Management and mayoral support positions.  

(1) Except as provided in subsection (6) of this section, employees hired to fill the following appointive offices 

shall be subject to the direction and supervision of the mayor, and are not covered by the grievance, 

disciplinary action and appeals provisions of this chapter. Persons employed in these appointive positions shall 

be “at will” employees of the city and may be terminated from the city’s employment at the mayor’s discretion. 

(a) City administrator; 

(b) Finance director; 

(c) City attorney and any assistant city attorneys; 

(d) Chief of police; 

(e) Fire chief; 

(f) Development services director; 

(g) Public works director; 

(h) Executive assistant to the mayor. 

(2) Subject to the provisions of subsection (6) of this section, employees holding the above-listed positions shall 

be offered employment contracts which shall govern the terms and conditions of their employment, including 

the terms of service, compensation and any severance pay allowance. The mayor is authorized to enter into 

employment contracts with employees holding the above-described appointive offices; provided, however, that 

before any such contract or specific contract terms are offered, the content of the same shall first be approved 

by the city council.  

 

38

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor02/OakHarbor0260.html#2.60.010


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Engineering Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the Clean Water Facility (CWF) Project Update attached.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City Council requested Regular Meeting updates on the CWF Project. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Engineering Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the Clean Water Facility (CWF) Project Update attached.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City Council requested Regular Meeting updates on the CWF Project. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report 4.19.16
2. Bond Rating Announcement
3. Financing Scenario - Refinance SRF Loans

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report 4.19.16
2. Bond Rating Announcement
3. Financing Scenario - Refinance SRF Loans

.

39

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460739405_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460744427_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460744501_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 

1 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – April 19, 2016     

The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

 Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation) 

 Completed installing the PSE underground powerline 

 Continued installation of tiebacks 

 Continued excavation to foundation elevation 

 City Council  Approved GMP #7 –Deep Foundation 

 Held vendor outreach meeting on April 12 

 Windjammer Park Integration Plan 

 Citizen Advisory Group meeting #4 and Open House held on March 29th  

 
ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 

 Site Preparation Package B 

 Finish tie back installation 

 Continued excavation of cofferdam 

 Micropile  installation 

 Bond sale schedule for April 19th 

 Windjammer Park Integration Plan 

 Citizen Advisory Group meeting #5 on May 5th 

 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 

Facility Design – 

Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers completed  the 90% design drawings for 

the process structures associated with the treatment plant. 

90% 

Facility Design – 

Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 60%. 60% 

Facility Design – 

Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance and Community room 

are at approximately 30%. 

30% 

 

CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 

Site Preparation 

Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete.  

Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 

Package C  

Preliminary work has begun on Site Preparation Package C.  

Work will include micro-piles in the bottom of the deep 

excavation and installation of a tower crane 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 

Bioreactors and Aeration Basins has been completed.    

GMP #7 has been approved by Council. 

Completed 

40



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 

2 
 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 

Pending Permits Description 

 Foundation permit 

 

 Site Plan Amendment 

 Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 

foundation permit. 

 The design team submitted the  revised the site plan submittal to 

reflect Concept B. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 

Item Description Estimated Completion 

GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 

phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 

the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun – Driving 

sheet piles completed.  Excavation and tie backs 

have started. 

May 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Reviewing shop drawings and preparing 

micropile installation 

July 2016 

GMP #7 (Deep Foundation 

Concrete) 

Reviewing shop drawings and preparing concrete 

construction 

May  2017 

 

 
 

COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 

GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 

Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 

equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 

installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 

(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 

Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 

waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 

(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  

Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  

Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 

or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 

(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 

demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 

sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 

approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

GMP #5  

(Biosolids Dryer) 

 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 

Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 

GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 

October 20th City Council Meeting.   

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-

41



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 

3 
 

piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 

to the site. 

GMP #7 (Deep 

Foundation) 
$10,169,937 The Deep Foundation package includes the concrete 

construction to bring the Membrane building to grade and 

other construction activities. 

Overall Project TBD 90% design documents have been received by the City. 

Hoffman initiated cost estimates. Staff presented the updated 

cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on September 30th 

with options regarding biosolids handling and including a 

community/training room.  90% design for the non- process 

buildings is expected in August. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 

Construction 

On January 21, 2016 we received news that the CWF is on the 2017 proposed 

funding list for an additional $42,632,742 in SRF Loans at an interest rate of 

1.6%.  The final approved list comes from the state legislature and typically 
occurs around July. 

Bonds The City is actively pursuing issuance of bonds. 

Rates Ordinance 1760 was passed by City Council on March 15, 2016.  Staff will 

continue to evaluate rates as the project progresses. 

Funding: In hand Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 

Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 

years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 

project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant has also been 
obtained.  

2015 CWSRF – Outfall 

Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 

construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 

20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 

Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 

wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 

Construction  

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 

years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 

project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant  

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program.  Staff has applied for grant reimbursement 

Bond Anticipation Note  Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 

a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 

this project. 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 

Upcoming activities or 

In-Progress activities 
Description 

Project communications The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 

42



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 

4 
 

plan through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 

signage and regular mailers at major milestones. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

The project team is preparing for the Fifth Citizen Advisory Group meeting to be 
held on May 5th. 

 
 PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 

 
 

Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 
Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 

360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org

43

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 

5 
 

 

We are here 

44



WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT APRIL 11, 2016 1 

1613360 | 301973558 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary: 

Oak Harbor, Washington; 
Water/Sewer 
Primary Credit Analyst: 
Aaron Lee, San Francisco (1) 415-371-5066; aaron.lee@standardandpoors.com 

Secondary Contact: 
Chloe S Weil, San Francisco (1) 415-371-5026; chloe.weil@standardandpoors.com 

 
Table Of Contents 

 
 

Rationale 
 

Enterprise Risk Profile 

Financial Risk Profile 

Outlook 

Related Criteria And Research 

45

http://www.standardandpoors.com/RATINGSDIRECT
mailto:aaron.lee@standardandpoors.com
mailto:chloe.weil@standardandpoors.com


WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT APRIL 11, 2016 2 

1613360 | 301973558 

 

 

Summary: 

Oak Harbor, Washington; Water/Sewer 
 

 
 
 
Rationale 
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services assigned its 'A+' long-term rating to Oak Harbor, Wash.'s 2016 waterworks utility 

revenue bonds. The outlook is stable. 

The rating is based on our view of the city's strong enterprise risk profile and very strong financial risk profile. 

The strong enterprise risk profile reflects our view of the city's: 

• Stable and diverse customer base with good income indicators, 
• Moderate rates that are reviewed annually with preapproved rate increases for the sewer fund through 2018, and 
• Good operational management with ample water supply although the city has some financial and operational risk 

related to the new wastewater treatment plant project. 
 
The very strong financial risk profile reflects our view of the city's: 

 
• Good projected coverage when debt service stabilizes in the outer years, 
• Very strong liquidity that we expect to persist through the outlook period, and 
• Good overall financial management. 

 
The 2016 waterworks utility revenue bond proceeds will be used to provide funding for the City of Oak Harbor's new 

wastewater treatment plant and are secured by net revenue of the waterworks utility, which consists of both the water 

and wastewater systems of the city and any Utility Local Improvement District (ULID) assessments. Bond provisions 

are, in our view, adequate and credit neutral, and include a rate covenant and additional bonds test of 1.25x annual 

debt service. The city does not intend to fund a reserve for the 2016 bonds, but given the city's strong liquidity we do 

not consider this a credit weakness. 

 
 

Enterprise Risk Profile 

The City of Oak Harbor is located on Whidbey Island in Island County, which is located in northern Puget Sound, 

approximately 90 miles north of Seattle. Major employers in the area include Naval Air Station (NAS) Whidbey Island, 

Boeing, and local governmental entities. Income indicators are, in our view, good with median household effective 

buying income (EBI) at 107% of the national level in 2014. Unemployment rates in the county have historically been 

higher than the state and national rates. As of January 2016, unemployment in Island County stood at 6.7% compared 

with the state's 6.3% and the nation's 5.3%. 

Credit Profile 

US$25.0 mil rev bnds ser 2016 due 10/01/2047 

Long Term Rating A+/Stable New 

46

http://www.standardandpoors.com/RATINGSDIRECT


WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT APRIL 11, 2016 3 

1613360 | 301973558 

Summary: Oak Harbor, Washington; Water/Sewer 
 

 

 
 

The customer base is primarily residential and very diverse. As of fiscal 2015, the sewer system had 5,943 customers 

(77% residential), while the water system had 5,998 customers (75% residential). Total accounts for both the water and 

the wastewater systems have remained essentially unchanged over the past five years. When combined, the top 10 

leading water and sewer customers represent about 9.5% of operating revenue. The top customer, NAS Whidbey 

Island, represents about 6% of combined revenue and about 3.7% of sewer revenue. Management reports that when 

the new wastewater treatment plant project is complete, the Navy will no longer be a sewer customer. However, the 

city expects that the resulting decrease in operating expenses will offset the loss in revenue. 

For water service, residential customers pay a base rate that depends on meter size and a three-tiered volumetric rate. 

Based on our benchmark monthly use of 800 cubic feet, we calculate a monthly water bill of $61.20. A flat rate of 

$64.75 is levied for sewer service, and the city has adopted annual sewer rates through fiscal 2018, with increases of 

20% for fiscal 2017 and 15% for fiscal 2018. When combined and annualized, rates represent about 2.9% of median 

household EBI. Given the county's relatively moderate poverty rate, we view the rates as affordable, which provides 

the city with future rate settling flexibility. 

The majority of the city's water (about 99.7%) is purchased from the City of Anacortes, which obtains its water supply 

from the Skagit River. The agreement with Anacortes extends through 2025, and management expects no issues with 

renewing. The remainder of the water supply comes from city-owned wells. Through the funding provided by this 

bond issue, the city is pursuing the building of a new wastewater treatment plant to replace the existing Seaplane Base 

Sewage Lagoon facility. According to management, the outfall had failed at the existing plant and the plant is nearing 

the end of its useful life. As a result of the outfall failure, the city is sending its flows to NAS Whidbey Island for 

treatment. The new plant will employ membrane bioreactor technology and will have capacity to treat 1.9 million 

gallons per day, which is ample for the current average maximum flows of about 0.6 mgd. At the completion of the 

new facility, the existing plant will be abandoned and demolished. 

Based on our operational management assessment, we assign the city a score of '2' on a six-point scale on which '1' is 

the strongest. This indicates, in our view, that operational and organizational goals are generally well aligned, even if 

some challenges exist. In general, we view the city as having ample water supply and expected wastewater treatment 

capacity. However, there are some financial and operational risks related to the design and construction of the new 

wastewater treatment plant. Management also reports that it participated in the Local Government Financial 

Performance pilot program, which serves to track the financial health of local government entities, and is regularly 

involved in maintaining the presence of NAS Whidbey Island. Rates are reviewed annually and we view the adoption 

of multiyear approved rate increases as a strong practice. 

 
 

Financial Risk Profile 

Prior to this bond issue, the combined water and wastewater system had minimal debt resulting in all-coverage levels 

in excess of 4x over the past three years when including the capital payments to Anacortes as fixed costs. Based on 

management's projections, we estimate that coverage will fluctuate in the near term as the city's debt burden reaches 

its maximum of $4.2 million to $5.4 million for the next 20 years depending on the city's decision on its debt 

structuring. In the current projection, we may see insufficient coverage of about 0.9x in fiscal 2018 largely as a result of 

47

http://www.standardandpoors.com/RATINGSDIRECT


WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT APRIL 11, 2016 4 

1613360 | 301973558 

Summary: Oak Harbor, Washington; Water/Sewer 
 

 

 
 

the timing of the state revolving fund (SRF) loan amortization schedule, although the exact timing is uncertain. 

Management expects to fund a rate stabilization reserve to manage the coverage during this period. With the 

preapproved rate increases for the sewer fund, we expect coverage to eventually stabilize to a good 1.2x to 1.5x in the 

outer years. 

The combined water and wastewater system's unrestricted cash has been very strong over the past three years. At the 

end of fiscal 2014, the system had about $19.7 million in unrestricted cash, which represented over 2.5 years of 

operating expenses. Based on unaudited fiscal 2015 data, we expect cash to increase to nearly $32.4 million, or more 

than four years of operating expenses. Based on the city's funding plan for its capital improvement program (CIP), we 

expect cash to be maintained at a very strong level through the two-year outlook horizon. Depending on the final 

project cost and the funding secured, management reports that it may spend down $5 million to $10 million of cash 

reserves. 

Over the next five years, the city expects to spend about $95.7 million on capital projects with $89.7 million coming 

from bond proceeds and loans. The city has received indication that the state expects to be able to award the 

anticipated $58.5 million in SRF loans for the project. However, in the event that the funding does not occur, the city is 

prepared to issue additional debt to fund the project. In addition to the SRF loans, the city expects to issue $7 million 

to $10 million of new debt to finance portions of the water CIP. 

Based on our financial management assessment (FMA), we assign Oak Harbor a score of '2' on a six-point scale on 

which '1' is the strongest. A good FMA indicates our view that practices are good but not comprehensive. The 

government maintains many best practices deemed critical to supporting credit quality, particularly within the finance 

department. These practices, however, may not be institutionalized or formalized in policy, may lack detail or 

long-term elements, or may have little recognition by decision makers outside of the finance department. The good 

FMA includes monthly reporting of intra-year financials and annual reviews of long-term financial and capital plans. 

The city has also adopted comprehensive and prescriptive investment, liquidity, and debt management policies. 

 
 

Outlook 

The stable outlook reflects our expectation that the waterworks utility will meet its projected coverage metrics given 

the preapproved rate increases for the sewer fund that were made in preparation for the additional leverage. Although 

the city anticipates some additional debt for the water system and possibly for the wastewater plant project, depending 

on any loan or grant funding shortfalls, we expect the city to take the necessary actions to maintain at least good 

coverage when the financing plan becomes more certain. The city's stable and diverse customer base provides 

additional stability to the credit. 

Upside scenario 
Although we do not anticipate doing so during the outlook period, we may raise the ratings if the city is able to meet 

and exceed its financial projections such that it sustains a track record of financial performance that is comparable with 

that of higher-rated peers. 

48

http://www.standardandpoors.com/RATINGSDIRECT


WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT APRIL 11, 2016 5 

1613360 | 301973558 

Summary: Oak Harbor, Washington; Water/Sewer 
 

 

 
 

Downside scenario 
If the city does not meet its financial projections or if cost overruns on the new wastewater treatment cause the city 

financial distress, we may lower the ratings. 

 
 

Related Criteria And Research 
Related Criteria 
• USPF Criteria: Rating Methodology And Assumptions For U.S. Municipal Waterworks And Sanitary Sewer Utility 

Revenue Bonds, Jan. 19, 2016 

• USPF Criteria: Methodology: Definitions And Related Analytic Practices For Covenant And Payment Provisions In 
U.S. Public Finance Revenue Obligations, Nov. 29, 2011 

• USPF Criteria: Assigning Issue Credit Ratings Of Operating Entities, May 20, 2015 
• Criteria: Use of CreditWatch And Outlooks, Sept. 14, 2009 

 

Related Research 
• U.S. State And Local Government Credit Conditions Forecast, Jan. 11, 2016 
• U.S. Municipal Water And Sewer Utilities 2014 Sector Outlook: Learning To Do More With Less, Jan. 9, 2014 

 
 
Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, 

have specific meanings ascribed to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. 

Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for further information. Complete ratings information is 

available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.globalcreditportal.com. All ratings affected by this rating action can 

be found on Standard & Poor's public Web site at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in 

the left column. 

49

http://www.standardandpoors.com/RATINGSDIRECT
http://www.standardandpoors.com/
http://www.globalcreditportal.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/


WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT APRIL 11, 2016 6 

1613360 | 301973558 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Copyright © 2016 Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, a part of McGraw Hill Financial. All rights reserved. 
 

No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, model, software or other application or output therefrom) or any part 
thereof (Content) may be modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval 
system, without the prior written permission of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC or its affiliates (collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be 
used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or 
agents (collectively S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not 
responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use of the Content, or for 
the security or maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an "as is" basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S FUNCTIONING 
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no 
event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, special or consequential 
damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by 
negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages. 

 

Credit-related and other analyses, including ratings, and statements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and 
not statements of fact. S&P's opinions, analyses, and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, 
hold, or sell any securities or to make any investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to 
update the Content following publication in any form or format. The Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment 
and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business decisions. S&P does 
not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor except where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from sources it believes to be 
reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of any information it receives. 

 

To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain 
regulatory purposes, S&P reserves the right to assign, withdraw, or suspend such acknowledgement at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P 
Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the assignment, withdrawal, or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any 
damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof. 

 

S&P keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective 
activities. As a result, certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established 
policies and procedures to maintain the confidentiality of certain nonpublic information received in connection with each analytical process. 

 

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from obligors. S&P 
reserves the right to disseminate its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, 
www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com and www.globalcreditportal.com (subscription) and www.spcapitaliq.com 
(subscription) and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional information 
about our ratings fees is available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees. 

50

http://www.standardandpoors.com/RATINGSDIRECT
http://www.standardandpoors.com/
http://www.ratingsdirect.com/
http://www.globalcreditportal.com/
http://www.spcapitaliq.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees


$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

City of Oak Harbor ‐ Projected Sewer System Debt Service 
Scenario: SRF Reamortization and Revenue Bond Refunding

2015 SRF 2016 SRF 2017 SRF 2016 Revenue Bonds New Aggregate Debt Service

51



$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

City of Oak Harbor ‐ Projected Sewer System Debt Service 
Scenario: 30‐Year SRF Loans with 30‐Year Revenue Bond (Level DS) 

2015 SRF 2016 SRF 2017 SRF 2016 Revenue Bonds

52



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-14:  Alteration to 
Island Place Division 2 Final Plat

FROM: Development Services Director Steve Powers

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 16-14 authorizing the alteration to the Final Plat of Island Place PRD, Division
2.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents a revision to the final plat for the Island Place Planned Residential Development
Division 2.  The previously-approved final plat created 66 lots and 3 common tracts.  The proposed 
revision will remove a setback line on the plat that restricted the location of the homes in a way that could 
create parking problems for homes with rear-facing garages. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.a
Date: April 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-14:  Alteration to 
Island Place Division 2 Final Plat

FROM: Development Services Director Steve Powers

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 16-14 authorizing the alteration to the Final Plat of Island Place PRD, Division 
2.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents a revision to the final plat for the Island Place Planned Residential Development 
Division 2.  The previously-approved final plat created 66 lots and 3 common tracts.  The proposed 
revision will remove a setback line on the plat that restricted the location of the homes in a way that could 
create parking problems for homes with rear-facing garages. create parking problems for homes with rear-facing garages.   

The initial Island Place Preliminary Plat and Planned Residential Development (PRD), consisting of 107 
total lots was approved December 20, 2005.  Over the intervening years, construction was begun on the 
eastern portion of the development, consisting of 39 lots.  After a pause in construction, Division 2 was 
slightly reconfigured to remove two lots and submitted for approval to the City.  The Final Plat for 
Division 2 was approved by the City Council on November 4, 2015.

Since that date, construction was begun on several new homes when the builder realized that a 20-foot 
front setback delineated on the Division 2 plat may cause some of the homes to have rear setbacks that
would create a shortened driveway to the rear-loading garages.  This shortened driveway could create a 
parking problem for those homeowners and potentially cause blockages of the private alleyway.  

As the previous phase and the approved PRD did not call for a specific 20-foot front setback, the 
applicant requested that the setback line be removed in order to place the homes in a manner similar to 
Division 1: with the rear garage setback dictating the location of the home and the front setbacks being 
staggered for a pleasing visual effect.  

The removal of this setback line will not create a situation where any easements are encroached upon or 
zoning code requirements are violated.   

create parking problems for homes with rear-facing garages.   

The initial Island Place Preliminary Plat and Planned Residential Development (PRD), consisting of 107 
total lots was approved December 20, 2005.  Over the intervening years, construction was begun on the 
eastern portion of the development, consisting of 39 lots.  After a pause in construction, Division 2 was 
slightly reconfigured to remove two lots and submitted for approval to the City.  The Final Plat for 
Division 2 was approved by the City Council on November 4, 2015.

Since that date, construction was begun on several new homes when the builder realized that a 20-foot 
front setback delineated on the Division 2 plat may cause some of the homes to have rear setbacks that 
would create a shortened driveway to the rear-loading garages.  This shortened driveway could create a 
parking problem for those homeowners and potentially cause blockages of the private alleyway.  

As the previous phase and the approved PRD did not call for a specific 20-foot front setback, the 
applicant requested that the setback line be removed in order to place the homes in a manner similar to 
Division 1: with the rear garage setback dictating the location of the home and the front setbacks being 
staggered for a pleasing visual effect.  

The removal of this setback line will not create a situation where any easements are encroached upon or 
zoning code requirements are violated.   

53



 REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS

As previously noted, the final plat for this subdivision was approved by the City Council under the 
requirements set forth in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  This subsequent alteration process for subdivisions is 
governed by RCW 58.17.215:   

 Alteration of subdivision—Procedure.

When any person is interested in the alteration of any subdivision or the altering of any portion thereof, 
except as provided in RCW 58.17.040(6), that person shall submit an application to request the 
alteration to the legislative authority of the city, town, or county where the subdivision is located. The 
application shall contain the signatures of the majority of those persons having an ownership interest of 
lots, tracts, parcels, sites, or divisions in the subject subdivision or portion to be altered. If the subdivision 
is subject to restrictive covenants which were filed at the time of the approval of the subdivision, and the 
application for alteration would result in the violation of a covenant, the application shall contain an 
agreement signed by all parties subject to the covenants providing that the parties agree to terminate or 
alter the relevant covenants to accomplish the purpose of the alteration of the subdivision or portion 
thereof.

Upon receipt of an application for alteration, the legislative body shall provide notice of the application to 
all owners of property within the subdivision, and as provided for in RCW58.17.080 and 58.17.090. The 
notice shall either establish a date for a public hearing or provide that a hearing may be requested by a 
person receiving notice within fourteen days of receipt of the notice.

The legislative body shall determine the public use and interest in the proposed alteration and may deny or 
approve the application for alteration. If any land within the alteration is part of an assessment district, any 
outstanding assessments shall be equitably divided and levied against the remaining lots, parcels, or tracts, 

 REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS

As previously noted, the final plat for this subdivision was approved by the City Council under the 
requirements set forth in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  This subsequent alteration process for subdivisions is 
governed by RCW 58.17.215:   

 Alteration of subdivision—Procedure.

When any person is interested in the alteration of any subdivision or the altering of any portion thereof, 
except as provided in RCW 58.17.040(6), that person shall submit an application to request the 
alteration to the legislative authority of the city, town, or county where the subdivision is located. The 
application shall contain the signatures of the majority of those persons having an ownership interest of 
lots, tracts, parcels, sites, or divisions in the subject subdivision or portion to be altered. If the subdivision 
is subject to restrictive covenants which were filed at the time of the approval of the subdivision, and the 
application for alteration would result in the violation of a covenant, the application shall contain an 
agreement signed by all parties subject to the covenants providing that the parties agree to terminate or 
alter the relevant covenants to accomplish the purpose of the alteration of the subdivision or portion 
thereof.

Upon receipt of an application for alteration, the legislative body shall provide notice of the application to 
all owners of property within the subdivision, and as provided for in RCW58.17.080 and 58.17.090. The 
notice shall either establish a date for a public hearing or provide that a hearing may be requested by a 
person receiving notice within fourteen days of receipt of the notice.

The legislative body shall determine the public use and interest in the proposed alteration and may deny or 
approve the application for alteration. If any land within the alteration is part of an assessment district, any 
outstanding assessments shall be equitably divided and levied against the remaining lots, parcels, or tracts, outstanding assessments shall be equitably divided and levied against the remaining lots, parcels, or tracts, 
or be levied equitably on the lots resulting from the alteration. If any land within the alteration contains a 
dedication to the general use of persons residing within the subdivision, such land may be altered and 
divided equitably between the adjacent properties.

After approval of the alteration, the legislative body shall order the applicant to produce a revised 
drawing of the approved alteration of the final plat or short plat, which after signature of the legislative 
authority, shall be filed with the county auditor to become the lawful plat of the property.

This section shall not be construed as applying to the alteration or replatting of any plat of state-granted 
tide or shore lands.

City staff reviewed the alteration request and found it to meet the requirements set forth in the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code regarding subdivisions.  Therefore, the Planning Division recommends approval 
of the proposed alteration based on the determination that the removal of the setback line is not contrary 
to the original PRD approval nor the OHMC.  No negative impacts will be created by the removal of the 
line from the final plat map.

State law provides the necessary guidance for the City Council’s review and action once the staff 
recommendation is received.  RCW 58.17.215 states, in part, “After approval of the alteration, the 
legislative body shall order the applicant to produce a revised drawing of the approved alteration of the 

outstanding assessments shall be equitably divided and levied against the remaining lots, parcels, or tracts, 
or be levied equitably on the lots resulting from the alteration. If any land within the alteration contains a 
dedication to the general use of persons residing within the subdivision, such land may be altered and 
divided equitably between the adjacent properties.

After approval of the alteration, the legislative body shall order the applicant to produce a revised 
drawing of the approved alteration of the final plat or short plat, which after signature of the legislative 
authority, shall be filed with the county auditor to become the lawful plat of the property.

This section shall not be construed as applying to the alteration or replatting of any plat of state-granted 
tide or shore lands.

City staff reviewed the alteration request and found it to meet the requirements set forth in the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code regarding subdivisions.  Therefore, the Planning Division recommends approval 
of the proposed alteration based on the determination that the removal of the setback line is not contrary 
to the original PRD approval nor the OHMC.  No negative impacts will be created by the removal of the 
line from the final plat map.

State law provides the necessary guidance for the City Council’s review and action once the staff 
recommendation is received.  RCW 58.17.215 states, in part, “After approval of the alteration, the 
legislative body shall order the applicant to produce a revised drawing of the approved alteration of the 

54



final plat or short plat, which after signature of the legislative authority, shall be filed with the county 
auditor to become the lawful plat of the property.”

CONCLUSION

The altered final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the 
approved planned residential development and the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has reviewed the 
application for conformance with the appropriate technical requirements and has determined that the 
proposed final plat meets the code requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the alteration of the final 
plat.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
In general, RCW Chapter 58.17 governs the approval of subdivision plats.  The approval of a final plat is 
specifically addressed in RCW 58.17.160 and 170.  The City’s subdivision regulations are found in 
OHMC Title 21, with final plats addressed in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  Finally, final plats are categorized 
as a Type VI review process under OHMC 18.20.280.  Type VI process does not require a public 
hearing; approval action may be taken in a public meeting.   

An alteration of a subdivision is subject to RCW Chapter 58.17.215, which requires that the legislative 
body determine that the public use and interest in the proposed alteration and deny or approve said 
alteration.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

final plat or short plat, which after signature of the legislative authority, shall be filed with the county 
auditor to become the lawful plat of the property.”

CONCLUSION

The altered final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the 
approved planned residential development and the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has reviewed the 
application for conformance with the appropriate technical requirements and has determined that the 
proposed final plat meets the code requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the alteration of the final 
plat.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
In general, RCW Chapter 58.17 governs the approval of subdivision plats.  The approval of a final plat is 
specifically addressed in RCW 58.17.160 and 170.  The City’s subdivision regulations are found in 
OHMC Title 21, with final plats addressed in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  Finally, final plats are categorized 
as a Type VI review process under OHMC 18.20.280.  Type VI process does not require a public 
hearing; approval action may be taken in a public meeting.   

An alteration of a subdivision is subject to RCW Chapter 58.17.215, which requires that the legislative 
body determine that the public use and interest in the proposed alteration and deny or approve said 
alteration.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/AAppropriation Source: N/A

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the proposed alteration.  The only change to the plat is the 
removal of an unneeded setback line.  All public infrastructure, rights of way and easements will remain as 
originally approved on the final plat.   

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Final Plat for Division 2 was approved by the City Council on November 4, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. December 2015 Island Place Division 2 Final Plat
2. Island Place Division 2 Final Plat with alteration
3. Resolution No. 16-14

Appropriation Source: N/A

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the proposed alteration.  The only change to the plat is the 
removal of an unneeded setback line.  All public infrastructure, rights of way and easements will remain as 
originally approved on the final plat.   

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Final Plat for Division 2 was approved by the City Council on November 4, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. December 2015 Island Place Division 2 Final Plat
2. Island Place Division 2 Final Plat with alteration
3. Resolution No. 16-14

55

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460397165_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460397217_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=45d6702b451238dcae93513b00ccad00&aName=1460474428_at.pdf


56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



RESOLUTION NO. 16-14 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ALTERATION TO THE FINAL PLAT OF ISLAND PLACE, DIVISION 2 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on November 22, 2005, held a public hearing after said hearing was published on 

November 5, 2005 in the Whidbey News Times on the Planned Residential Development plan and the Preliminary Plat 

for Island Place; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Record of Decision of the Planning 

Commission by reference (subject to certain conditions) and approved the Preliminary Plat of Island Place on December 

20, 2005; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Plat of Island Place, Division 2, last phase of Island Place Subdivision conforms to all of the 

preliminary plat and meets the requirements of OHMC 21.40 Final Plat; and 

WHEREAS, a minor change to the Final Plat was requested by the developer to ease placement of homes on individual 

lots; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

The Final Plat of Island Place, Division 2, consisting of 66 residential lots, a copy of said plat which is hereto attached and 

by reference made a part hereof, is hereby approved. 

PASSED by the City Council this 19th day of April, 2016. 

        CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

        ________________________________ 

        Bob Severns, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

Resolution 16-14: Alteration to Island Place Division 2 Final Plat 

Page 1 of 1 

68


	Agenda for April 19, 2016 Regular Council Meeting
	2.a.i  Proclamation in Honor of Earth Day
	 Proclamation

	2.a.ii  Proclamation in Honor of Arbor Day - April 29
	 Proclamation

	2.a.iii  Proclamation in Recognition of Parliamentary Law Month - April
	 Proclamation

	C/A 4.a  Minutes of the April 5, 2016 Council Meeting
	 4/05/2016 Minutes

	C/A 4.b  Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing (1)

	C/A 4.c  Appointment:  Lisbeth Cort to the Arts Commission
	Biography of Lisbeth Cort

	C/A 4.d  Employment Agreement for Assistant to the Mayor - Deanna Emery
	 Employment Contract
	 Oak Harbor Municipal Code Support

	5.a.i  Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
	 Report 4.19.16
	 Bond Rating Announcement
	 Financing Scenario - Refinance SRF Loans

	6.a  Resolution 16-14:  Alteration to Island Place Division 2 Final Plat
	 December 2015 Island Place Division 2 Final Plat
	 Island Place Division 2 Final Plat with alteration
	 Resolution No. 16-14




